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Preliminary Site Plan Review – Centennial Golf Course Parking Lot
February 7, 2022
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February 7, 2022



Mr. Tom LaPerch, Chairperson
Planning Board
Town of Southeast
1360 Route 22
Brewster, NY 10509

Re:  	Centennial Golf Properties and Toll Brothers
Centennial Golf Course & Parking Lot 
175 Simpson Road (aka 8-15 Centennial Lane), Tax ID: 44.-1-1
Letter of Intent – Preliminary Site Plan Review  
	Zoning District: Residential (R-60)

Dear Mr. LaPerch and Members of the Planning Board:

On behalf of our client, Centennial Golf Properties and Toll Brothers, we are respectfully requesting to be added to the February 28th Planning Board agenda for Preliminary Plan Review regarding the site preparation and construction of a 228-space surface parking lot and site amenities to serve Centennial Golf Club (CGC). A separate application is currently under review by the Town of Carmel for the development of 63 townhomes at the southwest corner of John Simpson Road and Fair Street at 185 John Simpson Road (Tax ID: 44.-2-2.1), associated with this project. 

Existing Conditions

The property at 8-15 Centennial Lane is 163-acres in size and is currently developed as the Centennial Golf Club (CGC). CGC offers three 9-hole courses identified as the Meadows, Lakes, and Fairways. Fairways is in the Town of Carmel while Meadows is in the Town of Southeast. Lakes is in both towns. The Project area is located at the northern tip of the Lakes and Meadows courses, east of the existing clubhouse and pavilion, and directly south of John Simpson Road in the R-60 residential zoning district. 

The western portion of the site contains golf cart paths, practice tee’s, a fairway, and pond. The Project area gradually slopes up from John Simpson Road and Fair Street to the approximate location of the existing practice areas and the wetland buffer area, and then begins to slope down toward the southwest corner of the property.

Proposal

The proposal includes two project areas. The western site includes the construction of a 63-unit townhome community with a clubhouse and pool for the residents is in the Town of Carmel. In the Town of Southeast, the proposal includes the site preparation and construction of a 228-space surface parking lot, and modification to golf course site features, the subject of this site plan review application. Both project areas will serve the CGC. 

The proposed 228-space surface parking lot includes access from an existing driveway loop that connects John Simpson Road to the Centennial Golf Club Clubhouse, the removal of cart trail sections to accommodate the parking area, removal of tee boxes, and the regrading of an existing fairway adjacent to the parking lot for the placement of new tee boxes, cart paths, and an attenuation pond and bioretention area to support the project. The proposed parking lot in the Town of Southeast will offer dark sky compliant lighting, proper drainage, and ample landscaping. Parking in the proposed lot will be restricted to patrons of the CGC.

Green infrastructure methods will be used to meet the requirements of the New York State Stormwater Management Design Manual relative to water quality and quantity on the site. Stormwater management upgrades are also proposed that meet the current New York City Department of Environmental Protection (NYCDEP).

State Environmental Quality Review Act (SEQR)

The proposal to construct 63 townhouse units, and to develop a 228-space parking lot does not present any significant impacts on the environment. The Town of Carmel has declared their intent to be Lead Agency for the project and is leading the environmental review of this project. An information package was previously provided to the Town of Southeast as part of the SEQRA referral and Lead Agency coordination process.  

The Centennial Golf Club was developed in the mid 1990’s and was the subject of an environmental impact statement (EIS). The project consisted of the development of 321 acres in the Towns of Carmel and Southeast as a 27-hole golf course, including a clubhouse with a pro shop and other amenities, a pavilion, a cart storage building and parking areas. The Findings Statement was issued in February 1996.

This project received the following approvals:

Site Plan, Subdivision, Tree Conservation Law, and Wetland Approvals, and an Earthwork Operations Permit from the Town of Carmel.
Special Permit, Site Plan, Subdivision, and Wetland Approvals from the Town of Southeast.
Curb Cut, Highway Work Permit, and Sewer System Design Approvals from Putnam County.
A Protection of Waters, Dam, and State Pollutant Elimination Discharge System Permits (SPDES) from New York State Department of Environmental Conservation.
A Section 404 Nationwide Permit from the US Army Corp of Engineers.
The EIS evaluated significant environmental impacts associated with the construction of the golf course. Of notable concern was:

blasting to aid in earth removal;
excavation and grading of approximately 28.8 acres within the 15 to 20% slope category;
groundwater aquifer and well protection, including capacity and potential impairment concerns for neighboring wells requiring water quality monitoring for 10 years after completion of the project;
vegetation removal of 92 acres of Woodlands, 27 acres of Old Field, 78 acres of Field/Residential, and 0.6 acres of Wooded Swamp;
a traffic impact study;
a fiscal impact analysis; and
the extension of the water and sewer districts to adequately serve the project. 
The following relevant information related to the project located in the Town of Southeast has been provided to the Town of Carmel as a supplement to the Part 1 Full Environmental Assessment Form for this Project: 

Wetlands

There are no federal or state regulated wetlands in the Town of Southeast project area. The construction of the 228-space parking lot and associated site improvements within the Town of Southeast will have no impact on wetlands in proximity to the project area. 

Stormwater

The Project site is located within the New York City Department of Environmental Protection (NYCDEP) watershed. Site alterations in the Town of Southeast include a total disturbance of 6+/- acres. Site disturbance to project areas located in both the Town of Carmel and the Town of Southeast include a total disturbance of 15+/- acres. The proposed site disturbances are subject to coverage under the State Pollution Discharge Elimination System (SPDES) General Permit for Stormwater Discharges from Construction Activity. A Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) will be prepared in conformance with the most current version of the New York State Stormwater Management Design Manual and New York State Standards and Specifications for Erosion and Sediment Control. Since the project is within a NYSDEP watershed, review of the SWPPP by the NYSDEP is required. An Erosion and Sediment Control Plan will be employed before construction begins, and properly maintained throughout construction to minimize adverse effects associated with sedimentation and erosion on adjacent land and water resources.

Parking

The 228-space parking lot in this proposal represents a relocation of parking spaces from the Town of Carmel to the Town of Southeast to fulfill the existing parking needs of the CGC due to the displacement of parking created by the townhouse development. The proposed parking lot has a smaller footprint with lower capacity at 228-spaces and will meet the demands of the golf course. The proposed parking lot will offer dark sky compliant lighting, proper drainage, and ample landscaping.

The townhouse project includes 126 on-site spaces, which meets both the 2-space requirement of the Town of Carmel, and the low-impact parking capacity needs of this development.  Parking at the newly proposed lot in the Town of Southeast will only be accessible to golf course patrons. 

Endangered, Threatened and Rare Species and Significant Habitats

There are no threatened or endangered plant or animal species in the Project area; and there are no significant impacts on ground water, wetlands, the transportation network, utilities, public services, noise, air, or odors.

The U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) concluded that there are no critical habitats within the project area under their jurisdiction that would support species identified in NYSDEC EAF Mapper and the USFWS Information and Planning for Consultation (IPaC) system. Species identified as typical for this area include: the Indiana bat (State and Federally endangered), the northern long-eared bat (State and Federally threatened), and the bog turtle (State endangered and Federally Threatened). 

There is no tree removal proposed in the Town of Southeast, therefore no anticipated impacts to the bat species.  If the bog turtle were to exist on the site, the species would most likely be located within the wetland area to the west of the proposed parking lot. 

Code Compliance

In accordance with The Town of Southeast Code, Section 138-41 – Zoning, site plan approval is required from the Planning Board for applications that include site development within the Town. 

The proposed parking lot and golf course amenities are permitted under previous approvals in the R-60 Residential district and meets all the lot, area, yard, bulk, and density requirements. The proposed project meets the minimum requirements for parking, and there are no maximum parking space requirements. No area variances are required to facilitate this project. 
[bookmark: _Hlk63682880]
We look forward to presenting the Preliminary Site Plan Application to the Planning Board at your meeting on February 28th.

In support of our application attached please find enclosed: 

(1) 	Check: $750.00, for Site plan review, $5,000 in escrow. 
(8) 	Copies of completed Application forms 
(8)	Copies of Letters of Intent
(9)	Scaled drawing sets (11” x17”)
(8)	Full Environmental Assessment Forms (FEAF), Part 1
(1)	Full size sets of the Site Plan, including floor plans and elevations
(1)	Flash drive device with all applicable documents 
(1) 	Full application package emailed to: aley@akrf.com and southeast@nlja.com 

If you have any questions or require any additional information, I may be reached at 585-455-0157 or claporta@passero.com.


Sincerely,
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Chris LaPorta, PE, CDT
Hudson Valley Office Manager
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